
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk

DEED, TRUST AND 
OBLIGATIONS 
COMMITTEE

Councillor A R Lloyd (Chairman)
Councillor J A Kite MBE (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor S H Brown
Councillor M J Davis
Councillor K M Kelly
Councillor R Lees

Councillor T A Maddison
Councillor D Swinerd

Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow

Mr R Estcourt (Independent Member)
     Mr M Hussey (Independent Member)
     Mr A R Martin (Independent Member)

Mr S Maynard (Independent Member)

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on

Tuesday 2 April 2019

at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford



This page is intentionally left blank



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE
AGENDA

Tuesday 2 April 2019

Guiding Principles 
 
In its decision making, the Charitable Trustee is bound by a number of guiding principles: 
 
(a) that it  acts  reasonably  i.e.  decisions should  be  within  the  range  of decisions which a 

reasonable body of trustees could have made; 
 
(b) that it acts within  the powers conferred upon  it and  the established  rules for procedures for 

dealing with issues of the kind under consideration; 
 
(c)  that it acts in good faith; 
 
(d) that it adequately informs itself in order to make the decision in question, including  a  

comprehensive  risk  analysis  and  where  necessary,  makes further  enquiries  and  where  
appropriate,  considers  legal  and  other professional advice; 

 
(e) that it does not take into consideration any factors which it is not proper for it to take into 

account; 
 
(f) that it considers any factors which it should take into account.

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 
To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any) by the Audit Board or 
Managing Director.

3. Confirmation of Minutes of the meeting held on 16 October 2018 
(Pages 1 - 6)

4. Redevelopment of Land East of 110-114 Lowfield Street - 
Consultation on Planning Application 19/00027/FUL (Pages 7 - 
14)
To consider the consultation on the application relating to the 
development of land east of 110-114 Lowfield Street for a 
predominantly residential development.

5. Any Other Business (A.O.B.) 

6. Date of Next Meeting 
Subject to confirmation at Annual Council in May 2019, the next 
meeting of the Committee will be held on Tuesday 15 October 2019.





1

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee held on 
Tuesday 16 October 2018.

PRESENT: Councillor A R Lloyd (Chairman)
Councillor J A Kite, MBE (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor S H Brown
Councillor M J Davis
Councillor R Lees
Councillor T A Maddison
Councillor D Swinerd
Councillor Mrs. P A Thurlow

INDEPENDENT 
MEMBERS:

Mr. Richard Andrew Estcourt
Mr. Martin Hussey
Mr. Tony Martin
Mr. Stephen John Maynard

ABSENT: Councillor K M Kelly

Dartford Borough Council Officers:-

Tim Sams – Financial Services Manager

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor K M Kelly and one for 
lateness from Councillor R Lees who subsequently joined the proceedings. 

The Chairman gave a special welcome to Morenike Olaogun who had 
recently joined Democratic Services and was attending her first meeting of the 
Committee. He also thanked the Financial Services Manager for his 
attendance to respond to any questions from Members on the submitted 
reports.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

On behalf of the Head of Legal Services, the Committee Co-ordinator 
confirmed that there were no apparent conflicts of interest for Cabinet 
Members present over any items in the agenda papers.

No other declarations were made, including by Councillor Lees when he 
subsequently joined the proceedings. 

3. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 17 OCTOBER 
2017 



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 16 OCTOBER 2018

2

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 17 October 2017 be confirmed.

4. URGENT ITEMS 

The Chairman confirmed that there were no urgent items for the Committee to 
consider.

5. CHAIRMAN'S UPDATE 

The Chairman confirmed that all Committee Members had received copies of 
the latest correspondence from Mr L P Ryan (Dartford resident) to Council 
Officers and the Charity Commission respectively for noting, under separate 
cover on 8 and 16 October 2018.

In response to a specific question from a Member, the Committee Co-
ordinator reminded Committee Members that it had been previously resolved 
that Officers respond to any future correspondence from members of the 
public concerning the governance of Trusts within the remit of the Committee, 
or concerning actions taken and matters arising from previous decisions made 
by the Committee [Min. No. 4(2) of 27 July 2015 refers]. Consequently, the 
recent correspondence from Mr Ryan was not included as an item on the 
Agenda, but copied to Members under separate cover for their information.

In response to a further specific question from the Councillor, the Committee 
Co-ordinator confirmed, that it was open to all Committee Members 
(Councillors and Independent Members) to consult with Officers on the 
contents of any such correspondence from members of the public copied to 
them for information, should they wish to do so.

6. USE OF THE KIDD LEGACY LAND, CENTRAL PARK FOR THE HOLDING 
OF ANNUAL EVENTS 

The report from the Policy & Corporate Support Manager sought agreement 
from the Committee, acting as Trustee, to the formal delegation of authority to 
the Managing Director and Strategic Directors to agree the use of Kidd 
Legacy land at Central Park Dartford for events open to the public at large. 
The report also confirmed that the income/proceeds of any such events held 
on Kidd Legacy land would accrue to the Kidd Legacy charity (No. 1132457).

Members were advised that the Local Government Act 1972 (section 101) 
provided specific statutory power for the discharge of functions to an officer 
[report para 3.3 agenda p.7] and that this delegated authority was already 
exercised by Council Officers for the running of Central Park as a whole on a 
day-to-day basis, including the holding of public events. The agreement of the 
Committee, acting as trustee, to formally delegate specific power to Officers 
for the use of the Kidd Legacy land within Central Park for events open to the 
public at large; was considered a logical extension of the statutory power 



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 16 OCTOBER 2018

3

already delegated to an officer under the Act for the exercise of routine 
administrative and organisational decisions. 

Officers also confirmed for the Committee, in response to specific questions 
from Members, that any income generated by the holding of events on the 
Kidd Legacy land at Central Park would be accounted for in the Kidd Legacy’s 
charity accounts [report para 3.4 agenda p.7], as presented to the Committee 
on an annual basis.  

Following wide-ranging discussion, including confirmation by attending 
Officers of the contents of paras 3.3 and 3.4 of the report [as minuted above]; 
the Committee with one exception, agreed to the granting of delegated 
authority to the Managing Director and Strategic Directors in respect of the 
use of Kidd Legacy land at Central Park, as recommended in the report.

Councillor T A Maddison asked that his objections to the granting of such 
delegated authority to the Managing Director and Strategic Directors be noted 
in the Minutes.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Committee, acting as trustee, grant delegated authority to the 
Managing Director and Strategic Directors to agree the use of the Kidd 
Legacy land at Central Park, Dartford for events;

2. That the income/proceeds from any events be applied to the Kidd 
Legacy charity (No. 1132457) and detailed in the charity’s accounts for 
presentation to the Committee on an annual basis. 

 

7. THE KIDD LEGACY TRUSTEE'S ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 
2017/2018 

The report asked the Committee to consider the Trustee’s draft Annual Report 
and Accounts on the Kidd Legacy at Central Park Dartford (registered charity 
number 11342579) for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 (attached as 
Appendix A to the report).

The Vice-Chairman noted the low current rate of interest accruing from the 
Trust’s Permanent investment endowment [Appendix A agenda p.21] which 
he calculated as approximately 1% of the capital sum. He asked if a greater 
return could be achieved for the Trustee by investment via the Council’s 
Treasury Management structure, to maximise the purchasing power of the 
Trust’s Permanent endowment.

Following Member discussion of the current rates available in the market to 
investors such as Trusts, and possible investment strategies using a mixture 
of short and long-term returns; it was agreed that the Chairman, in 
consultation with the relevant Financial Officer(s), would examine the market 
opportunities for a greater investment income return on the Trust’s Permanent 



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 16 OCTOBER 2018

4

endowment; including the possibility of investment through the structure of the 
Council’s Treasury Management Panel, which the Chairman attended in an 
Observer capacity; to enable the Trust to benefit from the Council’s greater 
overall purchasing capacity and consequent increased return rates.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Committee approve the draft Annual Report and Accounts for 
the Kidd Legacy at Central Park Dartford ( registered charity number 
11342579) for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 as set out in 
Appendix A to the report;

2. That the Committee Chairman be authorised to sign the Annual Report 
and Accounts on the Trustee’s behalf;

3. That the Managing Director be authorised to file the Annual Update  for 
the financial year 2017/18 with the Charity Commission on the 
Trustee’s behalf;

4. That the Chairman, in consultation with the Council’s relevant Financial 
Services Officers, examine the best market rates available to the 
Trustee for the investment of its Permanent endowment, including 
through the Council’s Treasury Management structure, and that the 
outcome be reported back to the Committee.

8. CHILDREN'S PLAYING FIELD AND RECREATION GROUND, SAVOY 
ROAD - TRUSTEE'S ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS AND ANNUAL 
UPDATE 2017/18 

This report asked the Committee to consider the Trustee’s draft Annual 
Report and Accounts and the Annual Update for the Children’s Playing Field 
and Recreation Ground, Savoy Road (registered charity number 302723) for 
the financial year 2017/18 (attached as Appendix A to the report).

The Financial Services Manager reminded Members that since 2014/15 the 
Council, in its corporate capacity, had met the cost of the 
upkeep/maintenance of the land following the exhaustion of the commuted 
sum received from Kent County Council [report para 3.8 agenda p.25] and 
would continue to do so for the remainder of the lease until 24 March 2028. 
The Council would also continue to maintain the play equipment at the site 
installed with corporate funds. 

Given this continued corporate expenditure by the Council, the Income and 
Expenditure account for the Trust as detailed in Appendix A [agenda p.34] 
was zero.

In subsequent general discussion, Members relayed the positive feedback 
that they continued to receive on a regular basis from residents, concerning 
the facilities available at Savoy Road.



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 16 OCTOBER 2018

5

RESOLVED:

1. That the Trustee’s draft Annual Report and Accounts and Annual 
Update for the Children’s Playing Field and Recreation Ground, Savoy 
Road Dartford (registered charity number 302723) for the period 1 
April 2017 to 31 March 2018 (as set out in Appendix A to the report) 
be approved;

2. That the Committee, acting as charitable trustee, notes the financial 
position of the Charity as set out in paragraph 3.8 of the report, 
including the Council’s undertaking in its corporate capacity to meet all 
expenditure for the Charity for the remainder of the lease term until 24 
March 2028;

3. That the Managing Director be authorised to file the Annual Update for 
the 2017/18 financial year with the Charity Commission on the Trust’s 
behalf. 

9. HESKETH PARK - TRUSTEE'S ANNUAL REPORT, ACCOUNTS AND 
ANNUAL UPDATE 2017/18 

The report presented the Trustee’s draft Annual Report and Accounts and the 
Annual Update for Hesketh Park for the 2017/18 financial year (attached as 
Appendix A to the report).

The Financial Services Manager referred Members to paragraphs 2.1 to 2.3 of 
Appendix A to the report (agenda p.41) which detailed the structure of the 
charitable land bequeathed to the Council by Lord Everard Hesketh, by a 
series of Conveyances in 1904, 1909 and 1913; the subsequent lease of the 
charitable land which forms the cricket field in Hesketh Park to Dartford 
Cricket Club Limited for 25 years from 21 July 2017, and the fact that the 
Charity was governed by a Scheme of Management made by the Charity 
Commission on 9 November 2011, which delegated authority to Officers to 
manage the Park on a day-to-day basis on the Trust’s behalf. 

The Charity Commission’s requirements for the registration of charities, and 
the current position of the Hesketh Park Trust, was set out in paragraph 3.3. 
of the report [agenda p.37].  

In response to a specific question from an Independent Member, the Financial 
Services Manager confirmed that it was expected that the Council, in its 
corporate capacity, would continue to meet the running costs of the charity 
including grounds maintenance, not met by the rental income from the lease 
granted to Dartford Cricket Club Limited. 

The Vice-Chairman updated the Committee on the Council’s future proposals 
for the development of Hesketh Park, including new green gym equipment 
and enhanced disability access including new park gates.



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 16 OCTOBER 2018

6

RESOLVED: 

1. That the Trustee’s draft Annual Report and Accounts and the Annual  
Update for Hesketh Park, Dartford for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 
March 2018  be approved;

2. That the Committee notes that the rental income arising from the lease 
of land to Dartford Cricket Club Limited is off-set against the grounds 
maintenance costs incurred by the Council in its corporate capacity on 
the Charity’s behalf. 

The meeting closed at 8.03 pm

Councillor A R Lloyd
CHAIRMAN



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE
2 APRIL 2019

REDEVELOPMENT OF LAND EAST OF 110-114 LOWFIELD STREET – 
CONSULTATION ON PLANNING APPLICATION 19/00027/FUL

Ward: Town

1. Summary

1.1 To consider the consultation on the planning application relating to  the development 
of land east of 110-114 Lowfield Street for a predominantly residential development.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the Charitable Trustee considers whether planning application 19/00027/FUL is 
likely to affect the enjoyment of the Kidd Legacy land as a public recreation ground.

2.2 That, as a neighbouring occupier, the Charitable Trustee responds to the consultation 
exercise on planning application 19/00027/FUL and decides whether it wishes to 
support the proposal, object to the proposal and/or make a general observation on 
the proposal.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1 The Council as local planning authority is required by law to notify neighbouring 
occupiers that an application has been received. Following an exchange of land by 
the Council, part of the western boundary of the Kidd Legacy land now borders the 
application site. 

A summary of application19/00027/FUL is at Appendix A to the report. 

A plan showing the Kidd Legacy land and the application site boundary is included 
at Appendix B to this report.

The submitted drawings and reports may be viewed on the Council’s website 
www.dartford.gov.uk  via Planning >Public Access and using the reference 
19/00027/FUL.  

3.2 The Charitable Trustee may comment on the application proposals whether in support 
or against, although the local planning authority can only take account of ‘planning 
considerations’.  These include matters such as the appearance of the proposal; 
loss of light or privacy, impact on the local environment; impact on traffic and whether 
the proposed use is suitable.  

The local planning authority cannot take into account matters such as the charitable 
status of the land, loss of property value, private disputes between neighbours, 
disputes over historical charity land disposals, matters covered by leases or 
covenants, the impact of construction work etc.



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE
2 APRIL 2019

4. Relationship to the Object(s) of the Trust

4.1A scheme governs the Kidd Legacy (being part of Central Park Dartford) (1132457) at 
Dartford Kent. The object of the Kidd Legacy charity is the appropriation and use of the 
land in perpetuity as a public recreation ground and for no other purpose whatsoever. 

4.2The Charitable Trustee should consider whether the redevelopment proposals are likely 
to affect the enjoyment of the Kidd Legacy land as a public recreation ground.

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk assessments

Financial Implications for the Trust None
Legal Implications for the Trust As discussed in the body of the report
Staffing Implications for the Trust None
Staffing and administrative 
Implications for the Trust

None

Risk Assessment for the Trust None

6. Appendices

Appendix A- Summary of application 19/00027/FUL
Appendix B - Plan showing the Kidd Legacy land and the application site 
boundary

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents 
consulted
   

Date File Ref Report
Author

Marie Kelly-Stone
Head of Legal 
Services

Section and
Directorate

Strategic 
Directorate – 
Internal 
Services 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 
N/A



APPENDIX A:
Planning reference: 19/00027/FUL

Land East of 110-114 Lowfield Street, Dartford (known as Vauxhall Farm)

Planning application by Sunningdale House Development for:

Erection of two, five to eight storey apartment blocks, providing a total of 92 
self-contained residential apartments; together with under-croft parking and 
cycle storage; and access (vehicle, pedestrian and cycle) from Lowfield Street; 
together with pedestrian and cycle connection to Central Park

Site Description

The site lies predominately behind Lowfield Street. Much of the site is hard-surfaced 
and currently occupied with a number of workshop and storage buildings and is in 
use as a tyre fitting, car sales and repair business. The eastern portion of the site 
adjoins the boundary with Central Park and is predominately open land which has 
been used as a smallholding/allotment in recent years. The car business is accessed 
from Lowfield Street whilst the open area to the east is accessed from Vauxhall 
Place.

The boundary to the site and the Park is currently chain-link fencing.  

The eastern boundary of the planning application site runs along the southern 
western boundary of the Kidd Legacy land.



Lowfield Street development to the north

Members may recall that they commented on the planning application for the 
development of the wider Lowfield Street site to the north of the current application 
on 08 March 2017.

This development extends from Market Street down to the southern boundary of the 
current application, incorporating the frontage to Lowfield Street. Planning 
permission was subsequently granted under reference 16/01919/FUL in September 
2017 for detailed planning permission for 188 dwellings in Phase 1 adjacent to 
Market Street and outline planning permission for 360 dwellings on the remainder of 
the site to the south, including the area adjacent to the Kidd legacy Land.



This proposal includes three routes from Lowfield Street to Central Park. One new 
route to be provided as Phase 1 north of the former nightclub (i.e. north of Instone 
Road), another using the existing entrance to the Park (known as the Go-Gaye 
entrance), and the third aligned with Vauxhall Place allowing a direct east-west route 
form Heath Street, via Vauxhall Place and the Park, to Darenth Road. This third 
entrance to the park is a temporary location with the planning boundary approved 
under reference 16/01919/FUL as a more direct alignment could be achieved 
utilising land that is the subject of the current planning application

The Proposal (19/00027/FUL)

The current proposal that the Committee has been consulted on is for the residential 
development of the site through the erection of two detached apartment blocks of 
five to eight storeys in height to provide 92 self-contained apartments.

Block A runs parallel to the southern boundary of the site, the eastern end of this 
block faces over Central Park. The elevation facing the Park is 7 storeys high. The 
ground floor is car parking with 6 storeys of accommodation above it. The upper 
storey is set back so that it is less prominent

Block B at the northern end of the site is smaller and has it main aspects onto the 
park. Block B is 8 storey high adjacent to the Park and again the upper storey is set 
back.

The image above shows the proposed blocks which are subject to the current 
planning application on the left and the shaded blocks on the right are the illustrative 
proposals granted outline planning permission in 2017.

Vehicular access to the development site will be taken from Lowfield Street.



A pedestrian/cycle route is provided on the northern boundary of the site to connect 
to Vauxhall Place and provide access to the Park at this point for pedestrians and 
cyclists.

The proposal includes replacement boundary treatment and the Park boundary is 
proposed to be railings to match others around the park as agreed with the Parks 
section. The applicants also propose funding additional tree planting within the Park 
in order to ensure a landscaped setting for the development.

Sonia Bunn

Development Manager



@ A4°1:2,500

Y:
\D

ata
_S

tor
e\D

ep
ar

tm
en

tal
_D

ata
\R

eg
en

er
ati

on
_D

ire
cto

rat
e\D

ev
elo

pm
en

t_C
on

tro
l\C

om
mi

tte
e_

Pl
an

_1
9_

00
02

7_
FU

L_
Kid

d_
Le

ga
cy

_2
01

90
32

1.m
xd

Ma
p P

rod
uc

ed
 B

y: 
se

as
tw

oo
d O

n: 
21

/03
/20

19
 11

:55
 A

M

 

Dartford Borough Council 100025870_2019

Application Site 19/00027/FUL
Kidd Legacy Land




	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of Minutes of the meeting held on 16 October 2018
	4 Redevelopment of Land East of 110-114 Lowfield Street - Consultation on Planning Application 19/00027/FUL
	Appendix A DTOC land east of 110-144 Lowfield Street
	Item 4 Appendix B Mk. II Plan_19_00027_FUL_Kidd_Legacy_20190321


